ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR 

The Circuit Court erred in its finding that W. Va. Code § 29B-I-4, et seq. did not 

exempt from public disclosure, under the West Virginia Freedom of Information Act 

("FOIA"), a video tape depicting an incident between correctional officers and an inmate 

inside of the Western Regional Jail. 

STANDARD OF REVIEW 

"Where the issue on an appeal from the circuit court is clearly a question of law or 

in vol ving an interpretation of a statute, we apply a de novo standard of review." Syllabus 

point 1, Chrystal R.M. \'. Charlie A.L.. 194 W.Va. 138,459 S.E.2d 415 (1995). 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Shane R. Marcum ("respondent") has been in the custody of the West Virginia 

Regional Jail and Correctional Facility Authority ("petitioner") pending felony charges 

since December 2 1,20 I 4. He is currently lodged at the Central Regional Jail. 

On February 27,2015, the respondent was housed at the Western Regional Jail in 

Cabell County, West Virginia. On that date, the respondent was involved in an incident in 

which members of the Regional Jail Authority employed flash-bang grenades while 

attempting to extract him from his cell. These flash-bang grenades caused injury to the 

respondent. 

Subsequently, the respondent filed a civil action against the petitioner, which has 

since been removed to the District Court for the Southern District of West Virginia (Shane 

R. Marcum v. Austin a.Burke, et aI., 2:15-CV-12721). This civil action is separate and 

apart from the present case. As a part of the discovery in his federal lawsuit, the respondent 

requested a copy of a video which allegedly depicts the incident in question. The petitioner 
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wished to disclose this video to the respondent, subject to a protective order. However, the 

respondent refused to accept the video if it were subject to a protective order. Instead, the 

respondent issued the Regional Jail Authority a request for the video under the West 

Virginia Freedom of Information Act, W. Va. Code § 29B-1-3, et seq. 

On July 24, 2015, the petitioner denied the respondent's FOIA request and advised 

him that the video in question was exempt from disclosure for privacy and security reasons 

pursuant to W. Va. Code §§ 29B-1-4 (a) (2) and (19). (Appendix record pp. 7-8). The 

respondent disagreed with this position and filed a petition in Kanawha County Circuit 

Court requesting injunctive relief and an Order that would require the petitioner to produce 

the video as requested. 

A hearing was held on the respondent's petition on October 13, 2015 in Kanawha 

County Circuit Court before the Honorable Joanna 1. Tabit. At this hearing, the Court 

Ordered the petitioner to submit the video to the Court for an in camera review. 

On November 4, 2015 the Court issued its decision. Citing Charleston Gazette v. Smithers, 

232 W.Va. 449, 752 S.E. 2d 603 (2013) and Hechler v. Casey, 175 W.Va. 494, 333 S.E. 2d 

799 (1985), the Court found that the legislature intended to allow liberal disclosure of public 

records under the Freedom of Information Act. The Court also found that the video was not 

exempt from disclosure under to W. Va. Code § 29B-I-4 (a) (19). Having made these 

findings, the Court Ordered the petitioner to disclose the video to the respondent within five 

days of entry of the Order. (Appendix record pp. 1-5 and 6). 

Thereafter, the petitioner filed a petition with the Circuit Court requesting a stay of 

this decision pending appeal. On November 30, 2015, the Circuit Court denied the 

petitioner's motion for a stay. Shortly thereafter, this Court stayed the Circuit Court's Order 
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pending this appeal. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

Security videos recorded inside the State's jails and correctional facilities are exempt 

from public inspection under the West Virginia Freedom of Information Act. Specifically, 

the video of the respondent's cell extraction taken from inside the Western Regional Jail is 

exempt from FOIA under W. Va. Code §§ 298-1-4 (a) (2) and (19). 

Further, the Circuit Court failed to properly analyze relevant FOIA case law which, 

if properly considered, would illustrate that privacy and institutional security concerns 

outweigh the public's interest in gaining access to the video. 

Although this issue is one of first impression in the State of West Virginia, this Court 

should follow the precedence of the Federal Court, as well as several other states, that 

prohibit, or severely limit, the release of cell extraction video. 

Lastly, if the Court orders the video's release, the safety and security of the State's 

regional jails and prisons and the employees that work in these facilities would be severely 

compromised. 

Accordingly, the Final Order should be reversed, and this matter should be remanded 

to the Circuit Court for further proceedings. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

The petitioner asserts that the issue of whether videos that depict the inside the 

State's jails and correctional facilities, including videos of cell extractions, are exempt from 

public disclosure under the West Virginia Freedom of Information Act is one of first 

impression and is of fundamental public importance that potentially could have far-reaching 

implications regarding correctional facility operating procedures. Accordingly, oral 
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argument is appropriate in this case pursuant to Rule 20 of the West Virginia Rules of 

Appellate Procedure. 

ARGUMENT 

I. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN FINDING THAT A VIDEO 
DEPICTING A CELL EXTRACTION AT THE WESTERN REGIONAL 
JAIL WAS NOT EXEMPT FROM DISCLOSURE UNDER W. VA. 
CODE § 29B-I-4 (9). 

Videos depicting images taken from inside jails and correctional facilities should be 

exempt from public disclosure under the West Virginia Freedom of information Act. W. Va. 

Code § 29B-I-4 (a) (19) exempts from disclosure under FOIA "records of the Division of 

Corrections, Regional Jail and Correctional Facility Authority and the Division of Juvenile 

Services relating to design of corrections, jail and detention facilities owned or operated by the 

agency, and the policy directives and operational procedures of personnel relating to the safe and 

secure management of inmates or residents, that if released, could be used by an inmate or 

resident to escape a facility, or to cause injury to another inmate, resident or to facility 

personnel.'· The reasoning behind this exemption is easy to understand. The legislature 

recognized the danger in allowing members of the general public to acquire knowledge of the 

security measures employed at the State's penal institutions, design of facilities, correctional 

officer movements, etc. A video depicting the inside of a regional jail would provide just that 

type of information. 

The video that is the subject of the respondent's FOIA request depicts the inside of the 

Western Regional Jail. In a procedure known as a "cell extraction," the video shows four 

correctional officers approaching and entering a common area of the jail. After shouting the 

respondent's name and demanding that he get on the floor, the officers proceed upstairs to the 

respondent's cell. After banging on the respondent's cell door, one of the officers throws two 
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successive flash-bang grenades into the cell. After again being instructed to get on the floor, the 

officers enter the cell and restrain the respondent. Other officers then appear in the video, and 

the respondent is taken from his cell to the common area. At that point, the respondent is placed 

on a gurney and taken to the medical unit. Lastly, the video depicts the respondent being taken 

outside of the facility. (Appendix Record p. 9). 

T a find that a video depicting this incident is not exempt from public disclosure under § 

298-1-4 (a) (19) is an incorrect reading of the plain text of the statute. There being no existing 

case law on this issue in the State of West Virginia, the Circuit Court's ruling is in direct 

contradiction with statutory authority. Certainly this video is a record of the Western Regional 

Jail that relates to the design of the facility and to its policy directives and operational 

procedures. The video contains numerous images of the inside of the jail and the movement of 

various jail personnel, which, if released, would compromise the safety and security of the 

facility and the inmates and statl' therein. In this context, the video of the respondent's cell 

extraction should not be made public pursuant the respondent's FOIA request. 

II. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN ITS ANALYSIS OF CHARLESTON 
GAZETTE V. SMITHERS AND HECHLER V. CASEY REGARDING 
FOIA EXEMPTIONS UNDER W. VA. CODE § 298-1-4. ET SEQ. 

The Circuit Court's analysis of precedence in this case failed to properly address the 

relevant issue of whether the video in question is exempt from release under W. Va. Code § 

298-1-4 (a) (19). In its Order denying the petitioner's claim that the video is exempt from 

disclosure under FOIA, the Circuit Court cited Charleston Gazette l'. Smithers, 232 W.Va. 

449,752 S.E.2d 603 (2013) ("the public policy of the State of West Virginia that all persons 

are, unless otherwise expressly provided by law, entitled to full and complete information 

regarding the affairs of government and the official acts of those who represent them as 
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public ofticials and employees,") and Hechler v. Casey, 175 W.Va. 434, 333 S.E.2d 799 

(1985) ( '·the disclosure provisions of this State's Freedom of Information Act, W. Va. Code, 

§29B-l-l, et seq., as amended, are to be liberally construed, and the exemptions to such Act 

are to be strictly construed,"). However, the Circuit Court does not successfully link these 

holdings to the facts of the present case. Aside from these general pronouncements 

regarding the standards of reviewing FOIA requests, the Circuit Court goes no further in its 

analysis of the applicable case law. (Appendix record p. 3). 

Instead, the Circuit Court seems to imply that the perceived severity of the incident 

depicted in the video is somehow a factor that should be considered when determining 

whether its release is exempt under § 298-1-4 (a) (19). (Appendix record pp. 3-4). 

However, the details of the incident between the respondent and the correctional officers are 

inconsequential for the purposes of this proceeding; that inquiry should be reserved for the 

civil suit. What should remain the focus of the legal analysis here is whether the depiction 

of the incident and of the inside of the regional jail itself is exempt under West Virginia 

ForA law. In this context, the Circuit Court has not conducted any analysis as to why this 

video is not exempt from disclosure. Again, § (19) exempts records related to the design 

and operation of jail facilities because security could become compromised. To state that 

the video should be disclosed to the respondent because the FOlA law is to be "liberally 

construed" is conc\usory and not legally meaningful. 

III. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED WHEN IT FAILED TO ANALYZE 
THE PETITIONER'S CLAIM THAT THE VIDEO WAS EXEMPT 
FROM FOIA UNDER W. VA. CODE § 298-1-4 (2). 

The Circuit Court briefly mentioned § 298-1-4 (2), but also did not analyze this 

exemption in relation to the facts of this case. (Appendix record p. 2). This code section 
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exempts from FIOA release "information of a personal nature such as that kept in a 

personal, medical or similar file, if the public disclosure of the information would constitute 

an unreasonable invasion of privacy, unless the public interest by clear and convincing 

evidence requires disclosure in this particular instance." In this case, the identities of the 

officers involved in the cell extraction, as well as of other jail staff, are depicted in the 

video. To allow the public at-large access to this video would be an unreasonable invasion 

of their privacy. 

In any case, the Circuit failed to perform the required balancing test of Charleston 

Gazette v. Smithers. Regarding personal private information, this case requires the Court to 

ascertain "whether the public disclosure of information under the Freedom of Information 

Act would constitute an unreasonable invasion of privacy [based upon] the following five 

factors: (I) whether disclosure would result in a substantial invasion of privacy and, if so, 

how serious; (2) the extent or value of the public interest, and the purpose or object of the 

individuals seeking disclosure; (3) whether the information is available from other sources; 

(4) whether the information was given with an expectation of confidentiality; and (5) 

whether it is possible to mold relief so as to limit the invasion of individual privacy." 

SyJlabus point 7, Charleston Gazette. If the Circuit Court had even superficiaJly 

considered these factors, it would have discovered that: (I) It is a substantial invasion of 

privacy to disclose the identities of the jail personnel, as this information could endanger 

their personal safety; (2) The purpose of the respondent's request was most likely an attempt 

to circumvent a protective order that would be imposed upon the video if it were disclosed 

in his civil suit so that he could publically publish the video; (3) The video was and is 

available to the respondent as a part of the discovery in his civil suit, albeit subject to the 
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aforementioned protective order; (4) Due to the nature of their employment, Regional Jail 

personnel would expect that their identities are not available for public consumption; (5) A 

protective order would be an excellent mechanism to ensure that the respondent had access 

to the video while mitigating privacy concerns. However, the Circuit Court failed to 

examine these factors. Without such examination, the Circuit Court could not establish that 

the value of public inspection of the video outweighed the officers' and jail staffs' privacy 

rights. 

Further, in cases where there is insufficient proof to establish that the public interest 

supersedes privacy concerns, the information in question should not be publically released. 

This Court has ruled that "where [an] individual fails to present, by clear and convincing 

evidence, a legitimate reason sufficient to overcome Freedom of Information Act exemption 

from disclosure for information of a personal nature and where adequate source of information is 

already available, records will not be released." Robinson v. Merritt, 375 S.E.2d 204, 180 W.Va. 

26 (1980). Absent a showing that there is a legitimate reason to disclose this personal 

infonnation, this video should be exempted from public inspection under § 29B-I-4 (2). 

IV. 	 ALTHOUGH THIS IS AN ISSUE OF FIRST IMPRESSION IN WEST 
VIRGINIA, THE FEDERAL COURTS AND OTHER STATES HAVE 
EXEMPTED, OR GREATLY RESTRICTED, THE RELEASE OF CELL 
EXTRACTION VIDEOS FROM FOIA DISCLOSURE. 

Although the issue of whether a video, particularly video of a cell extraction, taken from 

inside a jailor correctional facility is one of first impression in West Virginia, the Federal Courts 

have ruled that cell extraction videos from federal correctional facilities are exempt from public 

inspection under the Freedom of lnfonnation Act. I 5 V.S.C.A. *552 (b) (7) (F) states that 

"records or information compiled for law enforcement purposes" are exempt from FOIA if they 

1 5 U.S.c.A. *552, et seq. 
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"could reasonably be expected to endanger the life or physical safety ofany individual:' [n 

Zander v. Department ofJustice, 885 F.Supp.2d I (D.D.C. 2012), on reconsideration in part, 

appeal dismissed 2013 WL 599184, the Court applied this exemption to cell extraction videos 

stating that, "a video of federal prisoner being forcibly removed from his prison cell was 

properly withheld under Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) exemption for law enforcement 

information that could reasonably be expected to endanger the life or physical safety of any 

individual, even if the purpose of Bureau of Prisons (BOP) in recording the procedure was to 

guard against unfounded allegations and eliminate the unwarranted use of force; removing 

prisoners from their cells presented clear dangers to the officers charged with the task, 

dissemination to the public at large presented the possibility that other prisoners would learn the 

methods and procedures utilized by Bureau of Prisons (BOP) officials, and that this information 

might be used to thwart the safe application of these techniques in the future." Similarly to the 

respondent in the present case, Zander was forcibly extracted from his cell at a federal prison, 

and he submitted a FOIA request for the video ofthe incident. That the Federal Court so 

categorically denied his request should be considered strongly by this Court when formulating its 

ruling in this case.2 

Additionally, several states have interpreted FOIA exemptions similarly to W. Va. Code 

§ 29B-I-4 (a) (19) to prevent the production of cell extraction videos. For example, in 

Kentucky cell extraction videos are not made available for public inspection under state FOIA 

law.3 In denying such requests, the State relies on Kentucky, Ky. Rev. St. § 197.025 (I) which 

exempts certain records from public inspection "if the disclosure is deemed by the commissioner 

2 Zander represents persuasive authority, even though the particular exemption cited by the Court in that case was 
not the federal corollary to W. Va. Code § 29B-I-4 (a) (19), because the concerns at issue in both circumstances and 
claimed exemptions regard the need for institutional security and the potential for injury to persons and property if 
videos of this sort were to be made publicly available. 
3 Ky. Rev. St. §* 61.870 - 61.884 

12 

http:F.Supp.2d


ofthe department, or his designee, to constitute a threat to the security of the, inmate, any other 

inmate, correctional stan~ the institution, or any other person:' Accordingly, Kentucky deems 

the release of cell extraction videos to be a threat to institutional security. In an advisory 

opinion, the Kentucky Attorney General supports this position. See Ky. Op. Atty. Gen. 13

ORD-022, 2013 (Ky. A.G.), WL 565014. 

In Florida, the public release of cell extraction fixed-wing video is exempt from the 

Florida Public Records Act.4 Fla. Stat. § 119.071 (3)(1) exempts "records, information, 

photographs, audio and visual presentations, schematic diagrams, surveys, recommendations, or 

consultations or portions thereof relating directly to the physical security of the facility or 

revealing security systems" from public release because of the potential threat to the facility's 

security. Also, such video is exempted from public release because it may depict the facility's 

internal layout, security techniques, procedures, personnel. and, in some cases, shows the 

indentifiable faces of individual staff members. See also Fla. Stat. § 281.301. Again, the Florida 

Attorney General supports this position. "Surveillance tapes from a security system for a public 

building constitute information which reveals a security system which is confidential pursuant to 

§§ 119.071 (3) (a) and 281.301." Florida Op. Atty. Gen., 2015-06, April 16, 2015 (2015 WL 

1870565). 

In Minnesota, video which depicts cell extractions has been exempted from public release 

under FOIA.5 Minn. Stat. § 13.85 states that "corrections and detention data are confidential, 

pursuant to section 13.02, subdivision 3, to the extent that release of the data would: (a) endanger 

an individual's life. (b) endanger the effectiveness of an investigation authorized by statute and 

relating to the enforcement of rules or law, (c) identify a confidential informant, or (d) clearly 

4 Fla. Stat. *119.07 
5 Minn Stat. *13.03 
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endanger the security of any institution or its population." Based on this, the State has 

successfully classified jail extraction videos as confidential security information that is not 

subject to public release. See Minn.Stat. S 13.37, Northwest Publications, Inc. v. City of 

Bloomington, 499 N.W.2d 509,21 Media L. Rep. 1474 (1993). 

Even in New York, a state that expressly permits the public release of videos from jails 

and correctional facilities, the Courts have placed reasonable limitations on the scope of such 

requests. The Court there ruled that, under the state Freedom of Information Law (FOIL),6 

"disclosure of electronic video surveillance record of requester during his detention at county jail 

from one camera angle on one particular day would not endanger life or safety of any person by 

exposing limitations in jail's surveillance system, and thus record was not exempt from 

disclosure under Freedom of Information Law (FOIL)." However. in that case, the video 

requested was of a slip and fall, not a cell extraction. Going further, the Court wisely limited its 

ruling, stating that "disclosure of remaining electronic video surveillance records of requester 

during his detention at county jail could endanger life or safety of any person, and thus records 

were exempt from disclosure under Freedom of Information Law (FOIL), where records could

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