THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS 

OF WEST VIRGINIA 

AT CHARLESTON 


WEST VIRGINIA REGIONAL JAIL 
AND CORRECTIONAL FACILITY 
AUTHORITY, 

Petitioners, 

v. 	 No. 15-1174 

SHANE R. MARCUM, 

Respondent. 

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF 

I.

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

There is no West Virginia case law governing the discoverability of cell extraction video 

tapes. Accordingly, the case turns on the text of the FOIA. The FOIA, as construed by cases like 

Charleston Gazette, mandates the outcome of this appeal. Mr. Marcum's request for a copy ofthe 

cell extraction tape meets both the letter of the FOIA and the interpretative gloss placed upon the 

holding in Charleston Gazette and like cases favoring a liberal grant of disclosure. Mr. Marcum's 

request fits none ofthe exemptions set out in the FOIA, which are to be narrowly construed in any 

case. Nothing in the Jail's arguments~specially its attempt to bolster its argument with non-West 

Virginia authority-supports a different result. Mr. Marcum thus respectfully asks that the Order 

below be affirmed in all respects. 

III. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

After considering the criteria listed in W.Va.R.App.P. 18(a), Mr. Marcum asks that oral 

argument be granted in this case pursuant to W.Va.R.App.P. 20. This is a case offrrst impression 

in West Virginia and involves issues offundamental public importance. Accordingly, Mr. Marcum 

believes that oral argument will be useful to the Court in its deliberative process. 
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IV. 


ARGUMENT 


A. Standard ofReview. 


The circuit court set out the facts as it found them in thirteen findings offact (Order, Findings 

ofFact ~~ 1-3). The primary factual findings with respect to the incident in question are set out in 

Order, Findings ofFact ~~ 1-12. The relevant law was then applied to those facts by the circuit court 

ill Order, Finding of Fact ~ 13. 

A review ofthe Order thus presents a mixed question offact and law. The standard ofreview 

for such mixed questions of fact and law in this State is as follows: 

Many issues presented in this case involve mixed questions offacts and law. 
Resolving these mixed questions entails merging "fact-finding with an elucidation 
of the applicable law." Fraternal Order a/Police v. Fairmont, 196 W. Va. 97, 100 
n.3, 468 S.E.2d 712, 715 n.3 (1996). Ordinarily, we review a resolution of mixed 
questions "along the degree-of-deference continuum ...." ld. When a question is 
more dominated by facts, the more apt we are to accept the trier of fact's resolution 
of the matter, unless the decision is clearly erroneous. Tennant v. Marion Health 
Care Foundation, Inc., 194 W. Va. 97, 106,459 S.E.2d 374, 383 (1995). Ostensible 
"findings of fact," however, are subject to de novo review when they involve 
applying the law or making legal judgments which exceed ordinary factual 
determinations. Appalachian Power Co. v. State Tax Dept. a/West Virginia, 195 W. 
Va. 573,443 n.5, 466 S.E.2d424, 477 n.5 (1995). Moreover, when we are presented 
with an interrelationship between factual and legal conclusions, our review is 
plenary. ld. 

Cole v. Fairchild, 198 W.Va. 736,482 S.E.2d 913, 918 (1996). In addition the following standard 

of review is applied to circuit court FOIA orders: 

We have further indicated that a circuit court's final order and ultimate 
disposition are reviewed under the abuse ofdiscretion standard. State ex rel. Hechler 
v. Christian Action Network, 201 W.Va. 71,491 S.E.2d 618 (1997). 
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In re Charleston Gazette FOIA Request, 222 W.Va. 771, 671 S.E.2d 776, 780 (2008). 

Here, the circuit court fact finding was by no means erroneous but rather accurate. It did not 

constitute an abuse of discretion. Furthermore, the circuit court properly applied the law to those 

facts. A fortiori, the Order below should be affirmed in all respects. 

B. 	 The Circuit Court Properly Found That the Video in Issue Was Not Exempt from 
Disclosure under W.Va. Code § 29b-1-4(19). 

W.Va. Code § 29b-1-4(a)(19), the statutory basis for the Jail's appeal in this case, provides 

as follows: 

(a) There is a presumption ofpublic accessibility to all public records, subject only to 
the following categories ofinformation which are specifically exempt from disclosure 
under the provisions of this article: 

(19) Records of the Division of Corrections, Regional Jail and Correctional 
Facility Authority and the Division of Juvenile Services relating to design of 
corrections, jail and detention facilities owned or operated by the agency, and the 
policy directives and operational procedures of personnel relating to the safe and 
secure management of inmates or residents, that if released, could be used by an 
inmate or resident to escape a facility, or to cause injury to another inmate, resident 
or to facility personnel. 

The Jail assumes that the exemption ofcell extractions videos from public accessibility should 

be self-evident under this statute (Briefpp. 7-8). The petitioner lists the sort of data a video could 

reveal and concludes that the video "if released, would compromise the safety and security of the 

facility and the inmates and staff therein" (Briefp. 8). Thus, the Jail concludes, "the video of the 

respondent's cell extraction should not be made public pursuant [ sic] the respondent's FOIA request" 

(Brief p. 8). 
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The Jail's argument is flawed in a number of respects. Its essential flaw is that it begs the 

question before the Court. The Jail argues that "[t]o fmd that [the] video [in issue] is not exempt 

from public disclosure .... is an incorrect reading of the plain text of the statute" (Brief p.8). The 

"plain text" nowhere exempts cell extractions from disclosure under the FOIA. Indeed, the Jail 

admits that this specific issue "is one of first impression in West Virginia" (Briefp. 11). From this 

circumstance the Jail makes the curious argument that "[t]here being no existing case law on this 

issue in the State ofWest Virginia, the Circuit Court's ruling is in direct contradiction with statutory 

authority" (Brief p. 8). A more classic example of begging the question is difficult to imagine. 

At this point the Jail segues from question -begging to circular reasoning. The assumption seems 

to be that because there is no case law on the subject, allowing disclosure of the video directly 

contradicts W.Va. Code § 29b-I-4(a)(19). As is clear from "the plain text of the statute" (Briefp. 

8), however, there is no specific mention, let alone any exclusion, ofthe disclosure ofcell extraction 

videos in the statute. From this state of affairs the Jail somehow concludes that "the video of the 

respondent's cell extraction should not be made public pursuant to the respondent's FOIA request" 

(Brief p. 8). 

Such a conclusion turns the law on its head, however. As the Court has stated, the proper rule 

of construction is quite different: 

"The disclosure provisions of this State's Freedom of Information Act, W Va. 
Code, 29B-l-l et seq., as amended, are to be liberally construed, and the exemptions 
to such Act are to be strictly construed. W Va. Code, 29B-l-1 [1977]." SyI. Pt. 4, 
Hechler v. Casey, 175 W. Va. 434,333 S.E.2d 799 (1985). 

SyI. Pt. 3, Charleston Gazette v. Smithers, 232 W.Va. 449, 752 S.E.2d 603 (2013).Given the 

statutory absence of any specific mention of cell extractions, and given further the absence of any 
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West Virginia case authority on the specific point, the rule ofconstruction announced in Charleston 

Gazette clearly mandates disclosure ofthe video. That is, disclosure is required in this case "unless 

expressly provided by law." Charleston Gazette v. Smithers, supra, 752 S.E.2d at 614. There is no 

such express prohibition; hence, disclosure is proper. Indeed, the circuit court applied those very 

principles in ordering disclosure of the video. See Order, Findings ofFact No. 9-10 (App. R. p.3). 

Those fmdings should be upheld in this forum. 

In interpreting a statute, the courts often look to the practical construction the government 

administrating the statute places upon the enactment. Here, such an analysis strongly favors 

disclosure. Undersigned counsel filed an Affidavit as Exhibit E to Mr. Marcum's Response in 

Opposition to Application for Stay with this Court. Counsel testified that he had requested j ail videos 

in the past from the West Virginia Regional Correctional Facility Authority (Stroebel Aff. ~ 2). and 

that these videos were produced by the Authority without so much as a protective order (Stroebel Aff. 

~ 3). In addition, as counsel testified: 

[C]ounsel for the West Virginia Regional Correctional Facility Authority never 
raised any concerns about the disclosure ofthe videos creating a safety concern about 
the disclosure of the videos creating a safety concern for correctional officers, 
inmates or other facility personnel. 

(Stroebel Aff. ~ 3). In other words, the Jail appears to have undergone a sudden but unexplained 

conversion when it comes to the FOIA production ofjail videos. It should be required to follow the 

same practices and policy which led it to honor past disclosure requests. 
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C. 	 The Circuit Court Properly Analyzed and Applied the Principles Set out in 
the Charleston Gazette and Hechler Decisions Governing FOIA Exceptions 
under the FOIA Statute. 

The Jail charges the circuit court with not linking the principles set out in Charleston Gazette 

and Hechler "to the facts ofthe present case" (Brief p. 9). The principles cited in that regard by the 

Jail from Charleston Gazette are those of the public's right "to full and complete information 

regarding the affairs ofgovernment" unless otherwise provided by law; those from Hechler are those 

mandating liberal construction of the FOIA and a strict construction of the exceptions to that 

enactment. See Briefpp. 8-9. Of course the circuit court did, in fact, set out and follow those very 

principles (Order, Finding ofFact 'il9 (Charleston Gazette); 'il10 (State ex reI. Hechler v. Christian 

Action Network, 201 W.Va. 71, 491 S.E.2d 618 (1997». 

In the Jail's mistaken view, the holding in the circuit court rests solely on the view that "the 

FOIA law is to be 'liberally construed'" (Briefp. 9). This misrepresents the holding below. In fact, 

the circuit court made a careful analysis ofthe facts before it (Order, Finding ofFact No. 12). Then, 

the circuit court applied the holdings in Charleston Gazette and Hechler to those facts and 

"conclude [ d) that nothing on the videotape would put any inmate, resident or facility personnel at 

peril nor could the same be used by any inmate to facilitate any type ofan escape from the facility" 

(Order, Finding ofFactNo. 13). The Jail's assertion that "[a] side from these general pronouncements 

regarding the standards ofreviewing FOIA requests, the Circuit Court goes no further in its analysis 

of the applicable state law" (Brief p. 9), is belied by the actual process engaged in by the circuit 

court. See Order, Findings ofFact No. 9-13. In short, the circuit court made a careful and sufficient 

examination of the relevant facts and applicable law that well supports its Order. 
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The Jail also accuses the circuit court ofruling for disclosure out ofa sense ofsympathy for 

the serious injuries Mr. Marcum allegedly suffered during the cell extraction (Brief p. 9). In 

particular, by citing its discussion to App. R. pp. 3-4, the Jail seems to be pointing to Order, Finding 

of Fact No. 12. This Finding of Fact reveals no hint or suggestion ''that the perceived severity of 

the incident ... is somehow a factor that should be considered" in determining the exemption issue 

(Briefp. 9). This idea is not even suggested by a generous reading between the lines of the Finding; 

it exists solely in the Jail's imagination. 

Finally, the Jail declares that "[t]o state that the video should be disclosed to the respondent 

is to be 'liberally construed' is conclusory and not legally meaningful" (Briefp. 9). Whether this 

statement is true or false is irrelevant. In fact, while the circuit court certainly did adopt the liberal 

construction rule of Charleston Gazette and Hechler it did not stop at that point. Instead, the court 

proceeded to apply that principle to the actual facts ofthis case to find that disclosure was proper in 

this case. It follows that the Jail's characterization of the Order cannot survive an actual reading of 

that document. 

D. 	 The Circuit Court Properly and Fully Analyzed the Jail's FOIA Exemption 
Claim Under Invasion ofPrivacy Grounds. 

The Jail also charges the circuit court with failing to analyze W.Va. Code § 29B-I-4(a)(2) 

as it relates ''to the facts of this case" (Bri~fp. 9). That subsection provides as follows: 

(a) There is a presumption ofpublic accessibility to all public records, subject only 
to the following categories of information which are specifically exempt from 
disclosure under the provisions of this article: 
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(2) Information of a personal nature such as that kept in a personal, medical or 
similar file, if the public disclosure of the information would constitute an 
unreasonable invasion ofprivacy, unless the public interest by clear and convincing 
evidence requires disclosure in this particular instance: Provided, That this article 
does not preclude an individual from inspecting or copying his or her own personal, 
medical or similar file; 

The Order does deal with the privacy issue when it states ''that nothing on the video tape 

would put any ... facility personnel at peril" (Order, Finding ofFact No. 13). Moreover, this Court 

in Charleston Gazette stated: 

Conduct by a state police officer while the officer is on the job in his or her 
official capacity as a law enforcement officer and performing such duties, including 
but not limited to, patrolling, conducting arrests and searches, and investigating 
crimes does not fall within the West Virginia Freedom ofInformation Act invasion 
of privacy exemption set forth in West Virginia Code § 29B-1-4(a)(2) (2012). 

Syl. Pt. 8, Charleston Gazette v. Smithers, supra. Certainly, actions by a correctional officer while 

on duty are highly analogous to that ofa state police officer. Hence, the same considerations should 

apply. This is particularly true because cell extractions can often result from or lead to criminal 

activity for which prosecution may result. For this reason as well, the privacy exception does not 

apply to this case. See Syl. Pts. 14-15, Charleston Gazette v. Smithers, supra. 

One primary reason why the privacy exception is inapplicable here is because "the 

information is available from other sources." Syl. Pt. 7(3), Charleston Gazette v. Smithers, supra. 

Here, the names of the Correctional OfficerslResponse Team Members who are alleged to have 

injured Mr. Marcum in the course of the cell extraction are already a matter ofpublic record; they 

are listed as parties defendant in the federal civil action in this matter. Marcum v. Burke, et at., Civ. 

Act. 2-15-CV-12721 (S.D.W.Va.). Thus, production ofthe video will not violate the officers' right 
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to privacy because their identity is already publically known. Indeed, if it is a violation at all it is not 

a substantial violation, as the test in Charleston Gazette demands. 

In addition, as public employees, the correctional officers in this case must expect a 

somewhat diminished right to privacy in any event because '''when a person accepts public 

employment, he or she becomes a servant ofand accountable to the public. As a result, that person's 

reasonable expectation ofprivacy is diminished ... '" In re Charleston Gazette FOIA Request, supra, 

671 S.E.2d at 786, quoting Perkins v. Freedom ofInformation Commission, 228 Conn. 158,635 

A.2d 783, 792 (1993). 

The Jail faults the circuit court for allegedly "fail[ing] to perform the required balancing test 

of Charleston Gazette" (Brief p. 10). This balancing test has five parts; however, the fact it is 

denominated a balancing test at all suggests that the test does not require a perfect 100% score to 

pass. It is true that the circuit court did not apply the five-part test in terms; however, an examination 

ofits analysis, see Order, Finding ofFact No. 14, reveals that the balancing test is satisfied under the 

facts of this case. The so-called balancing test provides as follows: 

"In deciding whether the public disclosure ofinformation ofa personal nature under 
W. Va. Code § 29B-1-4(2) (1980) would constitute an unreasonable invasion of 
privacy, this Court will look to five factors: 

1. Whether disclosure would result in a substantial invasion of privacy and, if so, 
how serious. 

2. The extent or value of the public interest, and the purpose or object of the 
individuals seeking disclosure. 

3. Whether the information is available from other sources. 

4. Whether the information was given with an expectation of confidentiality. 

5. Whether it is possible to could relief so as to limit the invasion of individual 
privacy." 
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Syl. Pt. 2, Child Protective Group v. Cline, 177 W. Va. 29, 350 S.E.2d 541 (1986). 

Syl. Pt. 7, Charleston Gazette v. Smithers, supra. 

An examination30f these five points reveals that they have been satisfied under the Order. 

First, based on the (a) law enforcement context; (b) the public employment context; and (c) the fact 

of the pending federal lawsuit, there is no substantial invasion ofprivacy in this case. Second, there

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